
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Monday, August 17, 2015 

3:15 p.m.  Tour 
4:00 p.m. Open Session   

 
City Hall Council Chambers 

East side of Monte Verde Street 
Between Ocean and Seventh Avenues 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
BOARD MEMBERS:    ERIK DYAR, CHAIR  
      GREGORY CARPER 
      ELINOR LAIOLO  
      KATHRYN GUALTIERI 
      JULIE WENDT 
 
B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
Shortly after 3:15 p.m., the Board will leave the Council Chambers for an on-site Tour of 
Inspection as noted on “applications” section of the agenda.  The public is welcome to 
follow the Historic Resource Board on its tour of the subject sites. The Board will return to 
Council Chambers at 4:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as possible.  
 
C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D.  APPEARANCES 
 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on matters within the jurisdiction of the Board may do 
so now.  Please state the matter on which you wish to speak.  Matters not appearing on the 
Board’s agenda will not receive action at this meeting, but may be referred to staff for a future 
meeting.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes, or as established by the Board.  
Persons are not required to give their name or address, but it is helpful for speakers to state 
their name in order that the Secretary may identify them. 
  
E.   CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Consideration of the minutes of May 18, 2015 Historic Resources Board Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Historic Resources Board - Agenda 
August 17, 2015 

Page 1 



 
 
F.  ITEM 
 

1.  DR 15-238 (Ikeda) 
      Donna Ikeda 
      Santa Rita Street 9 SE Ocean 

Avenue  
      Block: 82, Lot: 20 
      APN: 010-043-009 

 

 Consideration of a Design Study (DS 15-
238) for alterations to a historic residence 
located in the Single-Family Residential 
(R-1) Zoning District  

   
 
G.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
 
H. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT 
 

1. Mid-Century Modern Buildings Committee  
2. Historic Home of the Month Committee 

 
I. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 

J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  
 
K.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Historic Resources Board 
regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the 
Planning and Building Department located at City Hall, on Monte Verde between Ocean 
and 7th Avenues during normal business hours. 
 
The next regular meeting of the Historic Resources Board is scheduled for Monday, 
September 21, 2015.    

3:15 p.m. – Tour of Inspection 
4:00 p.m. – Regular Agenda 

 
The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.  The 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea Telecommunication’s Device for the Deaf/Speech Impaired 
(TDD) number is 1-800-735-2929. 
 
The City Council Chambers is equipped with a portable microphone for anyone unable to 
come to the podium.  Assisted listening devices are available upon request to the Board 
Secretary.  If you need assistance, please advise the Board Secretary what item you 
would like to comment on, and the microphone will be brought to you. 
 

Historic Resources Board - Agenda 
August 17, 2015 

Page 2 



 
 
 
AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 

I, Marc E. Wiener, Senior Planner, for the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that the 
foregoing notice was posted at the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall bulletin board, posted at 
the Harrison Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln Avenues and the Carmel Post Office 
and distributed to members of the media on August 14, 2015. 
 
Dated this 14th, day of August 2015 at the hour of 9:00  a.m. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Marc Wiener, Senior Planner 

      
 
 

Historic Resources Board - Agenda 
August 17, 2015 

Page 3 



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
HISTORIC RESOURCES BOARD – MINUTES 

MAY 18, 2015 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
  
 PRESENT:  Board Members:  Carper, Laiolo, Gualtieri, Wendt 
 
 ABSENT:  Dyar 
 
 STAFF PRESENT: Marc Wiener, Senior Planner 
    Leslie Fenton, Executive Assistant 
 
B. TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 

The Historic Resources Board toured the following sites:  The Carmel Mission and The 
Golden Bough Theater at the SE corner of Monte Verde and Ocean. 

 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Members of the audience joined Board members in the pledge of allegiance. 
 
D. APPEARANCES 
 
 None 
 
E. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 1.  Consideration of the minutes of April 20, 2015 Historic Resources Board Meeting. 
 

Board Member GUALTIERI moved to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by 
WENDT and carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Laiolo, Gualtieri, Wendt, Carper 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Dyar 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Historic Resourced Board – Minutes 
May 18, 2015 

1 
 



F. ITEM 
  
               1.  DR 14-38 (Carmel Mission) 
                    Diocese of Monterey 
                    SW Corner of Rio Road and 
                        Lasuen Drive 
                    Block:  US, Lot:  38 
                    APN:  009-531-003 

Consideration of a Design Review (DR 14-38) 
application and associated Coastal 
Development Permit for alterations to the 
Carmel Mission including improvements to the 
parking area, courtyards, and gift shop. 

 
 

Marc Wiener, Senior Planner, presented the staff report.  Vice-chair Carper opened the 
public hearing at 4:07 p.m.  Brett Brenkwitz appeared before the Board.  There being no 
other appearances, the public hearing was closed at 4:09 p.m. 
 
Board Member WENDT moved to approve DR 14-38 with the following Special 
Conditions: 
 
1. The replacement concrete installed on the east portion of the Basilica 

Fourcourt shall include an earth-tone tint consistent with the historic 
character of the Forecourt setting.  The applicant shall work with staff on an 
appropriate material.  The paving in the Forecourt and quadrangle shall 
consist of aggregate earth-tone colored cement, to include brick work to 
match existing site conditions. 

 
2. Within the Downie Building the applicant shall delineate the location of the 

original wall on floor to provide a guide for the potential future replacement 
of the wall.  In addition, the property owner shall maintain a photographic 
record of this wall.  

 
3. The pavement removed from the Quadrangle will be replaced to match 

existing in pattern and material type.     
 
3. Tiles in the Mora Chapel shall be replaced in kind and salvaged and re-used 

when possible. 
 

4. The new east-elevation wood date shall be differentiated from the adjacent 
main entry gate. 

 
5. Prior to the beginning of construction, the applicant shall convene a pre-

construction  meeting to include the contractor and the Project Planner to 
ensure compliance with  the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties. 

 
 
 

 
Historic Resourced Board – Minutes 

May 18, 2015 
2 

 



6. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the final construction documents 
shall include  a materials list and a plan with elevation keynotes that clearly 
identify the methodology  and extent of the proposed salvage and reuse of 
existing building materials including all  exterior walls.  This “salvage and 
reuse plan” shall clearly indicate that materials shall  be: 1) preserved, 2) 
repaired when preservation is not possible, and 3) replaced in-kind  only 
when absolutely necessary.     

 
seconded by LAIOLO and carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Laiolo, Gualtieri, Wendt, Carper 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Dyar 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
               2.  HE 15-168 (Golden Bough 
                          Theater) 
                    Dennis Levett 
                    SE Corner of Monte Verde and 
                          Ocean 
                    Block:  74, Lot:  5 & 6 
                    APN:  009-210-009 

Review the potential historic significance of 
the property and determine whether a Phase 1 
Historic Evaluation should be prepared. 

 
Marc Wiener, Senior Planner, presented the staff report.  Vice-chair Carper opened the 
public hearing at 4:29 p.m.  Chris Tescher appeared before the Board.  There being no 
other appearances, the public hearing was closed at 4:43 p.m. 
 
Board Member GUALTIERI moved to request that a Phase 1 evaluation be completed 
and that applicant can move forward with painting of the building, seconded by 
LAIOLO and carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Laiolo, Gualtieri, Wendt, Carper 
NOES:  None 
ABSENT: Dyar 
ABSTAIN: None 

 
At 5:00 p.m. Vice-chair Carper had to leave the meeting.  Board Member Gualtieri presided over 
the meeting. 
 
G. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
 1.  Working on public outreach, historic preservation, with local realtors. 
 2.  Training opportunity coming up in Capitola on August 21st. 
 
 
 

Historic Resourced Board – Minutes 
May 18, 2015 

3 
 



H. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 1.  Mid-Century Modern Building Committee 
  
 Look into the possibility to schedule a workshop or symposium to look at the buildings in  
 this category. 
 
 2.  Historic Home of the Month Committee 
 

Board Member Carver talking with Pine Cone about article on home selected.  
Committee has a goal to get it out before the Centennial. 
 

I. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 1.  Centennial Celebration 
 
 Barbara Livingston suggested that historic photos of buildings be displayed in store      
            fronts. 
 
J. BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 None 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 There being no other business to come before the Board, the meeting was adjourned at 

 5:10 p.m. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Leslie Fenton, Executive Assistant 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Gregory Carper, Vice-chair 

 
 
 

 

Historic Resourced Board – Minutes 
May 18, 2015 

4 
 



CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

Historic Resources Board 

August 17, 2015 

 
To: Chair Dyar and Board Members 

From: Marc Wiener, Senior Planner 

Subject:  Consideration of a Design Study (DS 15-238) for alterations to a historic 
residence located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District  

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Issue a Determination of Consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards  
 
Application: DS 15-238 (Ikeda) APN:  010-043-009 
Block:  82                                  Lots:  20 and north pt. of abandoned 7thAvenue  
Location: Santa Rita Street 9 SE Ocean Avenue 
Applicant:  Thomas Hood Property Owner:  Donna Ikeda 
 
Background:  
 
The project site is located on Santa Rita Street, 9 parcels SE of Ocean Avenue. The site is 
adjacent to a portion of the former 7th Avenue known as Josselyn Lane, which adjoins the 
Forest Theater property. The existing house, known as the Talbert Josselyn house, is a two-
story, wood-framed vernacular style residence with a concrete foundation and an irregular 
building footprint. According to the Phase I Historic Evaluation (Attachment B) prepared for the 
site, the original one-story residence was constructed on the site circa 1940 by Talbert Josselyn, 
a nationally-known sports and pulp fiction writer. Mr. Josselyn was also deeply involved with 
the cultural life of Carmel throughout his lifetime. 
 
The exterior cladding is a combination of board and batten siding and wide horizontal ship lap 
wood siding.  A second-story addition was added over the garage in 1943.  Decks and French 
doors were added to the home in 2013. Character-defining architectural features of the 
residence identified in the Phase I Historic Evaluation are the irregular plan, vertical board and 
batten siding, low-pitched and stepped cross-gabled roof system and multi-paned wood 
casement windows, which have survived a number of physical changes over time.  



DS 15-238 (Ikeda) 
August 17, 2015 
Staff Report  
Page 2  
 
The Phase I Historic Evaluation concluded that the property is historically significant under the 
California Register Criterion 2 (persons), for its association with a significant Carmel Personage, 
Talbert Jossylen, who contributed to the arts and culture of Carmel. Previous alternations and 
modifications to the residence that are relevant to the application are further described in the 
Phase II Historic Assessment.   
 
The applicant is proposing several alterations to the historic residence, including demolition of 
the rear walls and construction of a one-story 287-square foot addition at the rear, east 
elevation, of the residence.  The proposed addition would include board-on-board siding, a bay 
window on the northeast rear wall, and additional cross gable roof shapes over the addition. 
The proposed project includes the following components:  
 
Interior Remodel 

• Kitchen, bath, and bedroom remodel, including addition of a powder room on the first 
floor 

 
North and Rear Exterior Alterations/additions 

• 287-square foot addition to the first floor enlarging existing kitchen, bedroom, and 
bathroom to accommodate the remodeled kitchen, bedroom, one and one-half 
bathrooms 

• The south wall line of the new addition would be two-feet closer to the south property 
line 

• New hot water heater enclosure (north side) under proposed roof overhang 
• New cross gables over additions 
• Board-formed concrete foundation under the water table 
• Repair, re-use, or replace existing historic windows as needed 
• New vertical 8-inch wide siding to mimic existing board and batten  
• New French doors to provide access to the rear garden  

 
Staff Analysis:  
 
Historic Evaluation Summary: The California Environmental Quality Act requires environmental 
review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the Secretary of the 
Interior’s Standards. The proposed alterations were reviewed by the City’s Historic Preservation 
Consultant: Kent Seavey. The Phase II Historic Assessment prepared by Mr. Seavey on August 4, 
2015, includes an analysis of the proposed changes based on the Secretary of the Interior’s 



DS 15-238 (Ikeda) 
August 17, 2015 
Staff Report  
Page 3  
 
Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties (Attachment D). The assessment concludes 
that the project, as shown on the project plans dated July 10, 2015, would be consistent with 
the Standards.    
 
East (Rear) Elevation:  Standard #9 states that “the new work will be differentiated from the old 
and will be compatible with the massing, size, and scale to protect the historic integrity of the 
property.”  Standard #10 states “New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be 
undertaken in such a manner that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of 
the historic property and its environment would be unimpaired.” 
 
The applicant is proposing a 287-square foot addition at the rear of the historic residence.     
The proposed addition would extend the building footprint approximately 16 feet east and 
would have little to no impact on the primary west elevation.  Staff notes that the Phase II 
evaluation identifies that the rear elevation as a secondary, previously altered, elevation.    
 
With regard to the rear addition, the proposed finish materials are differentiated, but 
compatible with the finish materials on the historic residence.  The proposed finish materials 
are as follows:   
 

1. Board-on-board wall cladding that would be differentiated from the board and batten 
siding on the historic residence.  Staff notes that board-on-board siding includes vertical 
wall insets where the battens would normally be. 

2. The foundation of the addition will consist of horizontal board formed concrete that will 
mimic the appearance of the horizontal wood siding on the historic residence. 

3. Wood windows are proposed on the addition that would be similar in design, but 
differentiated from the windows on the historic residence, as indicated by the window 
schedule on Sheet A2.1 of the plan set.  

 
The applicant has indicated to Mr. Seavey that certain materials from the historic residence, 
including a Dutch door and some windows, would be salvaged and re-used on the addition.  
However, the project plans do not clearly note which materials will be salvaged.  Staff has 
requested that the applicant provide the details on this at the HRB meeting.  A condition has 
been drafted requiring the applicant to submit a salvage/re-use plan. 
 
Alternatives:  The staff recommendation is to issue a determination that the application, as 
conditioned by staff, is consistent with the Secretary’s Standards. Alternatively, the Board could 
direct additional changes to the plan to achieve consistency with the Secretary’s Standards, in 



DS 15-238 (Ikeda) 
August 17, 2015 
Staff Report  
Page 4  
 
which case, the Board may need to continue the item to allow the applicant to return with 
further-revised plans.  Finally, the Board could find the application inconsistent with the 
Secretary’s Standards, which would result in either the applicant withdrawing the project or 
require additional CEQA analysis to evaluate impacts on historic resources. 
 
Environmental Review:  The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requires 
environmental review for alterations to historic resources that are not consistent with the.  If 
the alterations are consistent with the standards, potential historic resource impacts under 
CEQA do not require further analysis.  Staff concludes that the proposed alterations would be 
consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and therefore, do not require 
additional environmental analysis.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Attachment A – Conditions of Approval 
• Attachment B – DPR 523 Form 
• Attachment C – Phase II Historic Assessment 
• Attachment D – Secretary of the Interior Standards 
• Attachment E – Project Plans 



 
Attachment A – Conditions of Approval 

 
CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 

 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
DS 15-238 
Donna Ikeda 
Santa Rita Street 9 SE Ocean Avenue 
Block 82, Lot 20 and North Pt. abandoned 7th Avenue 
APN:  010-043-009  
 
AUTHORIZATION:   
 
1. This approval of Design Study (DS 15-238) authorizes alterations to an existing two-story 

1,323-square foot residence, as shown on the approved plans. The alterations include a 
new 287-square foot addition to the first floor, and exterior alterations to a historic 
residence, including new French doors and repair/replacement of existing windows as 
needed, and interior remodeling on the ground floor.   

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:   
 
2. Finish materials on the new addition shall be differentiated from the existing historic 

residence, as depicted on the plans dated July 10, 2015. The construction drawings 
submitted with the building permit application shall include a note to indicate 
compliance with this condition. 
 

3. The applicant shall submit a salvage/re-use plan identifying which windows and doors 
will be salvaged and re-used on the new addition.   
 

4. All new windows shall be differentiated from the historic windows. The applicant shall 
work with staff to ensure compliance with this condition. 
 

5. Prior to the beginning of construction, the applicant shall convene a pre-construction 
meeting to include the contractor and the Project Planner to ensure compliance with 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic Properties. 
 

6. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the final construction documents shall include 
a materials list and a plan with elevation keynotes that clearly identify the methodology 
and extent of the proposed salvage and reuse of existing building materials including 



 
 
DS 15-238 (Ikeda) 
August 17, 2015 
Conditions of Approval 
Page 2 
 

windows and all exterior walls.  This “salvage and reuse plan” shall clearly indicate that 
materials shall be: 1) preserved, 2) repaired when preservation is not possible, and 3) 
replaced in-kind only when absolutely necessary.     

 
 
*Acknowledgement and acceptance of conditions of approval. 
 
 
______________________  _________________  ___________ 
Property Owner Signature  Printed Name   Date 
 
 
 
Once signed, please return to the Community Planning and Building Department. 



mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment B - DPR 523







KENT JL~ SEAVEY 

3 :n. 0 LJIGHTHOUSE A VENUE 
PACJIFJIC GROVE~ CALJIFOJRN"JIA 93950 

(83 ]_ )3 75.-8739 

August 4, 2015 

Mr. Marc Weiner /Senior Planner 
Carmel Planning & Building Department 
City of Carmel by-the-Sea 
P.O. Drawer G 
Carmel, CA 93921 

Dear Mr. Weiner: 

Introduction: 

This focused Phase II Historic Assessment has been prepared on 
behalf of Donna Ikeda as part of an application to make alterations 
and additions to the historic 1940 Talbert Josselyn Hse., a vernacular 
residence located at the NE cr. of Santa Rita & 7th. (APN# 
010-043-009), in Carmel, for consistency of the proposed changes 
with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the Treatment of 
Historic Properties(see plans & drawings, and supporting 
documentation provided). 

The Secretary's Standards identifY four primary treatment 
approaches to historic buildings. They are Restoration, Preservation, 
Reconstruction and Rehabilitation. Rehabilitation is the Standard 
being employed for the Talbert Josselyn Hse. project. 

Rehabilitation is defmed as the act or process of making a 
compatible use for a property through repair, alterations, and 
additions while preserving those portions or features which convey its 
historical, cultural, or architectural values. 

The Secretary's Standards encourages "placing a new addition 
on a non -character -defining elevation." and locating alterations to 
historic properties in areas where previous alterations already eXist. 

As stated in the 1992 National Park Service Rlustrated 
Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings, ''The Standards are 
to be applied to specific rehabilitation projects in a reasonable 
manner, taking into consideration economic and technical feasibility." 

HJISTORKC PRESERVAll~KON MrlUSEUJVli JLNTERPRETATKON 

mwiener
Typewritten Text
Attachment C - Phase II Evaluation



Historical Background & Description: 

The subject property is a vernacular residence constructed by 
owner /builder Talbert Josselyn, a nationally known sports and pulp 
fiction writer. Mr. Josselyn was also deeply involved with the cultural 
life of Carmel throughout his lifetime. It is significant, at the local 
level, for its association with Mr. Josselyn during a productive period 
of his life. It falls under the Arts and Culture in Carmel (1904-1965) 
classification of themes in the 2008 Carmel-By-The-Sea Historic 
Context Statement. Its period of significance is 1940 (see California 
DPR 523 documentation provided). 

The one-and-two-story dwelling is irregular in plan, resting on a 
concrete foundation. The exterior wall cladding is a combination of 
vertical board -and -batten wood siding with wide, horizontal ship lap 
wood siding below the water table. The 1943 second floor bedroom is 
above a one-car garage with vertically planked outward opening 
double doors. 

The low-pitched, stepped cross-gabled roof system has 
overhanging eaves with exposed rafter-taUs, and simple wood facias 
in the gable ends. 

Fenestration is irregular, with a combination of fixed, single 
light, multi-paned wood windows in a variety of sizes, and paired, 
multi-paned wood casement type windows. There are two sets of 
wood multi-paned French doors present. They date to the 2013 wood 
deck additions off the west facing facade and north side-elevation, 
accessing the decks of the main living area and from a bedroom. 
There is one interior chimney located on the NE side of the roof plane 
just east of the junction with the second floor. The principal entry is 
on the south side-elevation on a raised landing accessed by a straight 
run wood staircase with a simple rail with balusters. A slight 
extension of the roof plane proVides a door hood for the wood paneled 
door that has multi-paned glazing above. There are also single access 
doors on the NE corner of the rear (east) elevation, and one below the 
small open, wood-post supported second-floor deck, toward the west 
end of the north side-elevation. 

The residence is sited a little back on the east side of Santa Rita 
on slightly rising ground, in a natural landscape setting of local 
ground cover and mature oaks and pines. It is partially enclosed by a 
tall grape stake fence, that borders along Josselyn Trail (7th St. right 
of way), and the northern end of the Forest Theater grounds. It is 
located in a wooded neighborhood of one and two-story homes of 
varying ages, sizes and styles. 

2 



Character defining features include its irregular plan; vertical 
board-and-batten wood siding; low-pitched and stepped cross
gabled roof system with wood shakes, and multi-paned wood 
casement windows. Two sets of French doors, with open wood decks, 
consistent in design with the Secretary's Standards for Rehabilitation, 
were added in 2013. 

Evaluation: 

The proponent proposes an eastward expansion of the rear 
elevation by approx. one bay in depth, with a new floor coverage of 
about 280 Sq. Ft., to provide space for a modern kitchen, master 
bedroom and bath. The work Will even the line of the north side
elevation east of the 195 7 dining room bay to the end of the proposed 
addition. Two small, glazed roof gables, above the kitchen space will 
bring light into the interior, and provide egress to the north side-yard 
(see photos and plans & drawings provided). 

The proposed work will reuse, to the extent feasible, existing 
historic windows or doors to be removed from the current rear 
elevation, consistent with Rehabilitation Standards #5, #9 & # 10 (see 
copy of the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation 
provided). 

As noted above, the Standards recommend new additions be 
placed on secondary elevations, and where alteration has already 
occurred. The proposed changes to the subject property are on 
secondary and altered elevations. 

Impacts of the Proposed Project: 

The following section provides a description of the proposed 
project and an analysis of the effects of the project impacts on the 
historic resource. 

FRONT (WEST) ELEVATION (primary, altered) 

The only proposed change to the front elevation would be an 
approximately two foot bump out of the new bedroom space at the 
rear of the existing building envelope on the south side-elevation, to 
differentiate the old construction from the new, consistent with 
Rehabilitation Standard #9. 

3 



SOUTH SIDE-ELEVATION (secondary, altered) 

As proposed, the new addition along this elevation would extend 
the building envelope about ten feet toward the east, matching and 
extending the existing roof covering. The exterior wall cladding would 
be board-on-board, resting on a raised concrete foundation that will 
be board-formed to match the lines of the existing horizontal wood 
skirt boards. Both the wall-cladding and the new concrete foundation 
will reflect character-defining features of the original building 
envelope, but be clearly differentiated from the old, consistent with 
Rehabilitation Standards #2, #9 & #10. 

The proposed windows for this elevation will also be 
differentiated from, but compatible with the original fenestration (see 
photos and plans & drawings provided). 

NORTH SIDE-ELEVATION {secondary, altered) 

As proposed the new addition along this elevation would extend 
the building envelope about sixteen feet toward the east, matching 
and extending the current roof form and coveringj creating an apron 
fronting an existing gable, which will be glazed in its apex to bring 
light into the new kitchen. 

The board-on-board exterior wall cladding will enclose a small 
existing shed-roofed utility room and provide needed space for the 
new kitchen, including a door accessing the side yard, with a simple 
open landing. If feasible, the existing windows will be reused in the 
expansion so there will be little visual change to the elevation (see 
photos and plans & drawings provided). 

EAST (REAR) ELEVATION (secondary, altered) 

The existing rear elevation steps slightly from south to north 
toward the west. The proposed addition will somewhat extend that 
stepped appearance with the front-gabled bedroom on the south side, 
and an aproned front gable, similar in appearance to that on the 
north side-elevation, on the north side of the rear elevation. 

The roof apron on the rear elevation will overhang a small, 
angled bay, similar in appearance to the 195 7 dining room bay on 
the north side-elevation, as a kitchen dining nook. The roof apron will 
also act as a door-hood over glazed French doors, set between the two 
gabled features, for access to the rear yard (see photos and plans & 
drawings provided). 

4 



The subject property was listed as an historic resource for its 
association with a significant Carmel personage, Talbert Josselyn. 
The vernacular residence has undergone several physical changes 
over time that have been sufficiently consistent With its vernacular 
design character to convey a strong sense of time and place and of 
feeling and association with the earlier cultural life of the village. In 
particular its location and setting in a wooded grove immediately 
adjacent to the Forest Theater, where Mr. Josselyn took part in 
dramatic productions. 

The proposed alterations and additions to the subject property 
essentially reflect the vernacular character, materials and 
workmanship found in the existing building. The owner intends to 
reuse such historic fabric, particularly windows and doors proposed 
for removal, as feasible, for reuse in the project. 

The Secretary's Standards for Rehabilitation recommend 
designing and installing additional entrances, or porches when 
required for the new use in a manner that preserves the historic 
character of the buildtng(s), i.e. limiting such alteration to non 
character-defining elevations. The rear of the subject property is an 
altered, secondary elevation, and therefore ean be considered non
character-defining. 

The Secretary's Standards for Rehabilitation also recommend 
designing new exterior additions to historic buildings or adjacent new 
construction which is compatible with the historic character of the 
site and which preserve the historic relationship between a building 
or buildings, landscape features, and open space. This certainly 
appears to be the case with the well thought out additions proposed 
for the subject property. 

As noted above, the proposed work will be executed consistent 
with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation, with 
the least possible loss of historic material so that the remaining 
character-defining features of the historic resource will not be 
obscured, damaged or destroyed. As proposed the new work will not 
cause a significant change to the historic building and will not create 
a significant adverse effect on the environment. 

Mitigation: 

The proposed project appears to be in conformance with the 
Secretary of the Interior's Standards for the treatment of Historic 
Properties under the standard for Rehabilitation (see supporting 
documentation attached). 

5 



As proposed, the project will have no significant adverse affect on the 
historic property or its environment. The only mitigation 
recommended would be measured drawings of the existing rear 
elevation as part of the approved plan set, no further mitigation is 
needed for this project. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

6 



Talbert Josselyn Hse .... CarJnel 
(NE cr. Santa Rita & 7th, Blk 82 Lot 20) 

Photo # 1. Looking NE at the west facing facade, 
KentSeavey,April,2015. 

~~~~ . ,, ~ 

Photo #2. Looking NEat the south side-elev., 
Kent Seavey, April, 2015. 



Photo #3. Looking SEat the north side-elev., 
KentSeavey,April,2015. 

Photo #4. Looking SEat the 1957 angled bay on the 
north side-elev .• Kent Seavey, April, 2015. 



Photo #5. Looking NW at the rear (east) elevation, 
Kent Seavey, April, 2015. 



Attachment D - Secretary Standards


















	Ikeda (DS 15-238) - Attach A - Conditions of Approval.pdf
	CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA
	DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND BUILDING
	CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
	DS 15-238

	HRB agenda - 081715.pdf
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	B.  TOUR OF INSPECTION
	C.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	D.  APPEARANCES
	E.   CONSENT AGENDA
	J.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS
	K.  ADJOURNMENT






